
 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

MINUTES 
 

March 18, 2025 
 

Hybrid Meeting  
 

 
Join Zoom Meeting 
Planning Commission Special Meeting Agenda March 18, 2025 – Zoom Link 
Meeting ID: 999 9677 6407 
Passcode: 428636 
 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: 

Terry Carter, Chair   Judy Pullinen Noah Schmidt – Select Board Rep. 
Ryan Silvestri Jean Strong  

 
MEMBERS ABSENT: 

Ted Stryhas 
 
STAFF PRESENT: 

Rose Goings Charlotte 
 
OTHERS PRESENT: 

Eric Alden Jason Rasmussen  
    

 
 

I.            CALL TO ORDER   
 

1. Terry Carter called the meeting to order at 6:05 p.m. 
 
 

II.            ROLL CALL BY SECRETARY 
 

1. All members are present, except Ted Stryhas. 
 
  

III.            OPENING STATEMENT BY CHAIR 
 

1. Terry Carter said that as Mr. Alden is the only non-board member present, and he has already 
heard her comments at previous meeting, that it is not necessary tonight 

 
 

IV.            CONSIDERATION OF ANY CHANGES, ADDITIONS OR REMOVALS TO THE AGENDA 
 

1. Terry Carter said there were none 
 
 

V. COMMENTS FROM CITIZENS  (5 minutes) 
   



 PLANNING COMMISSION               March 18, 2025 
Preliminary Minutes           
   
 

 

1. There were none 
 
 

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – February 18, 2025 
                      

1. Terry Carter said the minutes are from February 18, 2025 
2. Ryan Silvestri noted that Item VII-6-cc should read, “...occupancies over 8 should be…” 
3. Ryan Silvestri noted that Item VII-7-a should read, “Ryan Silvestri suggested that fees per 

unit be at a fixed rate with potential for exemption or lesser rates for homestead vs. non-
homestead.” 

4. MOTION by Judy Pullinen and seconded by Jean Strong to approve the minutes from 
February 18, 2025 as amended.  Motion passed unanimously. 
     

 
VII. RULES OF PROCEDURE 

  
1. Terry Carter said that Rules of Procedure will be tabled as Ted Stryhas is absent and the board 

has decided to review them when all are present. 
 

 
VIII. NEIGHBORHOOD DEVELOPMENT AREAS 

                        
1. Terry Carter said that she asked Jason Rasmussen to come tonight to discuss the NDA 

application before it is presented to the Select Board for approval. She advised that on April 
7th, the following public hearings will be held: 

At 5:00 p.m. Trustees - The purpose of the proposed amendment to the Village of Ludlow 
Zoning & Flood Hazard Regulations is to: 

• Replace the Village of Ludlow Zoning and Flood Hazard Regulations, Article 6 
with a new stand-alone Flood Hazard and River Corridor Bylaw for the Village of 
Ludlow. 
• Replace Section 227 of Article 2 of the Village of Ludlow Zoning and Flood 
Hazard Regulations. 

 
At 5:15 p.m. Select Board and Trustees: The purpose of the proposed amendments to the 
Town and Village of Ludlow Subdivision Regulations, is to: 

• implement both the 2019 Municipal Plan and Act 47 (the HOME Act); 
• make it easier to permit additional housing of various types, including affordable 
housing and senior housing, throughout the village and town; 
• comply with the provisions of 24 VSA §4412, 4413 and 4414. 
• update Town and Village of Ludlow Subdivision Regulations necessary to 
comply with the Neighborhood Development Areas Application Requirements 

 
At 5:30 - Select Board: The purpose of the proposed amendments to the Town of Ludlow 
Zoning & Flood Hazard Regulations, including the zoning maps is to: 

• implement both the 2019 Municipal Plan and Act 47 (the HOME Act); 
• make it easier to permit additional housing of various types, including affordable 
housing and senior housing, throughout the town; 

• comply with the provisions of 24 VSA §4412, 4413 and 4414, as well as Act 47       
and Act 181. 

 



 PLANNING COMMISSION               March 18, 2025 
Preliminary Minutes           
   
 

 

2.         Jason Rasmussen said if the Subdivision Regulations are approved, then they can apply for the 
NDA.  He referred to the map, showing the proposed “bubble” area for the NDA.  It will have 
to be where there is infrastructure.  He said that at this time, we believe that the Town Zoning 
is not there yet.  We have cut the NDA area off at Pleasant Street Ext. to the end of the Village 
line and can extend it further later.  We have excluded areas along the River Corridor, Ponds, 
Preservation and 100S. 

3.         Terry Carter said that the Select Board was not fully on-board with Commonwealth Avenue 
and did not want it included in the NDA. 

4.         Rose Goings noted that there are parts of Andover Street where one side of the street is 
included and the other side of the street is not included.  Both sides have water and sewer, but 
one side does not have sidewalks.  She is concerned that the people on the side not included 
may have issues with this. 

5.         Jason Rasmussen said that one side is either Flood Plain or River Corridor and the State has 
very clear rules about that.   

6.        Judy Pullinen referred to the map and asked about a particular area. 
7.        Jason Rasmussen said that they cut out the town part of Pleasant Street Ext.  
8.        Ryan Silvestri said that it is part of the River Corridor.   
9.         Jason Rasmussen said we can talk about adding more areas later, suggesting that they start out 

small. 
10. Ryan Silvestri asked if this will exceed the 2-year time table. 
11. Jason Rasmussen said no, if the application for the NDA is approved, we are good for a year, 

but it does sunset, but by then it will be a replica of the Regional.  ACT 181 was passed last 
year and it will be good for 2 years.  We are trying to get the NDA here and have it last 
through the Regional plan.  He then referred to the area around Gill Terrace. 

12. Ryan Silvestri said that further up Commonwealth Avenue, there are no sidewalks.  He said 
there is a subdivision with vacant lots up there - by Old Village Land and Country Ridge 
Road. 

13. Judy Pullinen added that is up to the end of the sidewalks. 
14. Terry Carter said the road gets steep and narrow  up there.  She asked if the map also has to be 

approved by the Trustees? 
15. Jason Rasmussen said the Trustees have to approve the application and the map. 
16. Ryan Silvestri said the Village ends at Northridge Road 
17. Jason Rasmussen asked if they want to leave Gill Terrace as it is 
18. Ryan Silvestri said it is part of the Village 
19. Noah Schmidt said there are houses on commonwealth before the substation 
20. Jason Rasmussen said he thinks that is where the development is 
21. Ryan Silvestri said the Village line is just south of Northridge and Old Village and Country 

Ridge are in the Village 
22. Jason Rasmussen said maybe we should not make any changes there 
23. Ryan Silvestri said he thinks the map is set where it is.  He said there may be errant parcels in 

the Town Zoning. 
24. Jason Rasmussen said we can change the Town Zoning. If we apply and we missed some 

parcels, we can add them at a later date. 
25. Terry Carter asked about Dorsey Park area 
26. Jean Strong said Parker Avenue has the river there 
27. Ryan Silvestri said he thinks all of the banks were armored when the mills were there.  Would 

that be an exception to the River Corridor rules. 
28. Jason Rasmussen said he will look it over again 
29. Jean Strong said one brook does come down there 
30. Ryan Silvestri said that at this point, time is more important than fine tuning 
31. Jason Rasmussen said we need to work on the application and tune the map later 



 PLANNING COMMISSION               March 18, 2025 
Preliminary Minutes           
   
 

 

32. Terry Carter said she would meet with Jason Rasmussen before the April meeting. 
33. Eric Alden said there is a parcel on Gill that is excluded and asked why? 
34. Rose Goings said that is part of the Gill homes parcel and there was a recent subdivision. 
35. Jason Rasmussen said he will look into it 
36. Ryan Silvestri asked if they can include a portion of a parcel or does it have to be the entire 

parcel.  That includes the subdivision on Country Ridge and Old Village 
37. Jason Rasmussen asked how walk-able is it? 
38. Judy Pullinen said not walk-able by most people 
39. Ryan Silvestri said there is a vacant lot on Old Village and they would probably have to get a 

curb cut.  They are hooked up to utilities.  It abuts up behind the school property and there are 
pedestrian walking paths. 

40. There was a consensus to look into Gill Terrace, the parking area and walking paths 
41. Jason Rasmussen said he will add in that area 
42. Ryan Silvestri said Northridge Road is in the Village 
43. Eric Alden said there is no access from Commonwealth Ave. 
44. Rose Goings said that lot comes off of Whispering Pines, and they wanted to put in access to 

Whispering Pines.  She asked if it is contiguous 
45. Eric Alden said it is to Whispering Pines, but one parcel cuts it off from access.  It is 

landlocked and they would have to put in a bridge. 
46. Rose Goings noted that Jason Rasmussen had put a “bubble” around it and that on West Hill 

Street, some of the parcels were not included on the left side that are residential.  She said the 
other side is commercial 

47. Jason Rasmussen said they thought it is too steep, but they will look at that also 
48. Rose Goings said it does get steep after the “bubble.” 
49. Jason Rasmussen said there is about a ¼ mile buffer around the Village Center Designation 

area and it has interim ACT250 exemption. 
50. Judy Pullinen said once you get to the railroad tracks, it get real steep 
51. Jason Rasmussen said they have West Hill up to the railroad tracks. 
52. Ryan Silvestri said after that, it is in the Town.  He said a portion of the Blue Lot is in the 

“bubble.” 
53. Jason Rasmussen said they did talk about that, but decided no.  He said we can add the parcels 

on Commonwealth, Gill Terrace and the “bubble” on Route 100S. 
  
 

IX. TOWN OF LUDLOW ZONING BYLAWS 
 

1. Terry Carter said that   we need to make the same changes as we made to the Village Zoning 
At 5:00 p.m. Trustees - The purpose of the proposed amendment to the Village of Ludlow Zoning 
& Flood Hazard Regulations is to: 

• Replace the Village of Ludlow Zoning and Flood Hazard Regulations, Article 6 
with a new stand-alone Flood Hazard and River Corridor Bylaw for the Village of 
Ludlow. 
• Replace Section 227 of Article 2 of the Village of Ludlow Zoning and Flood 
Hazard Regulations. 

 
At 5:15 p.m. Select Board and Trustees : The purpose of the proposed amendments to the 
Town and Village of Ludlow Subdivision Regulations, is to: 

• implement both the 2019 Municipal Plan and Act 47 (the HOME Act); 
• make it easier to permit additional housing of various types, including affordable 
housing and senior housing, throughout the village and town; 



 PLANNING COMMISSION               March 18, 2025 
Preliminary Minutes           
   
 

 

• comply with the provisions of 24 VSA §4412, 4413 and 4414. 
• update Town and Village of Ludlow Subdivision Regulations necessary to 
comply with the Neighborhood Development Areas Application Requirements 

 
At 5:30 - Select Board: The purpose of the proposed amendments to the Town of Ludlow 
Zoning & Flood Hazard Regulations, including the zoning maps is to: 

• implement both the 2019 Municipal Plan and Act 47 (the HOME Act); 
• make it easier to permit additional housing of various types, including affordable 
housing and senior housing, throughout the town; 

• comply with the provisions of 24 VSA §4412, 4413 and 4414, as well as Act 47       
and Act 181. 

 
2.         Jason Rasmussen said if the Subdivision Regulations are approved, then they can apply for the 

NDA.  He referred to the map, showing the proposed “bubble” area for the NDA.  It will have 
to be where there is infrastructure.  He said that at this time, we believe that the Town Zoning 
is not there yet.  We have cut the NDA area off at Pleasant Street Ext. to the end of the Village 
line and can extend it further later.  We have excluded areas along  the River Corridor, Ponds, 
Preservation and 100S. 

3.         Terry Carter said that the Select Board was not fully on-board with Commonwealth Avenue 
and did not want it included in the NDA. 

4.         Rose Goings noted that there are parts of Andover Street where one side of the street is 
included and the other side of the street is not included.  Both sides have water and sewer, but 
one side does not have sidewalks.  She is concerned that the people on the side not included 
may have issues with this. 

5.         Jason Rasmussen said that one side is either Flood Plain or River Corridor and the State has 
very clear rules about that.   

6.        Judy Pullinen referred to the map and asked about a particular area. 
7.        Jason Rasmussen said that they cut out the town part of Pleasant Street Ext.  
8.        Ryan Silvestri said that it is part of the River Corridor.   
9.         Jason Rasmussen said we can talk about adding more areas later, suggesting that they start out 

small. 
10. Ryan Silvestri asked if this will exceed the 2-year time table. 
11. Jason Rasmussen said no, if the application for the NDA is approved, we are good for a year, 

but it does sunset, but by then it will be a replica of the Regional.  ACT 181 was passed last 
year and it will be good for 2 years.  We are trying to get the NDA here and have it last 
through the Regional plan.  He then referred to the area around Gill Terrace. 

12. Ryan Silvestri said that further up Commonwealth Avenue, there are no sidewalks.  He said 
there is a subdivision with vacant lots up there - by Old Village Land and Country Ridge 
Road. 

13. Judy Pullinen added that is up to the end of the sidewalks. 
14. Terry Carter said the road gets steep and narrow  up there.  She asked if the map also has to be 

approved by the Trustees? 
15. Jason Rasmussen said the Trustees have to approve the application and the map. 
16. Ryan Silvestri said the Village ends at Northridge Road 
17. Jason Rasmussen asked if they want to leave Gill Terrace as it is 
18. Ryan Silvestri said it is part of the Village 
19. Noah Schmidt said there are houses on commonwealth before the substation 
20. Jason Rasmussen said he thinks that is where the development is 
21. Ryan Silvestri said the Village line is just south of Northridge and Old Village and Country 

Ridge are in the Village 



 PLANNING COMMISSION               March 18, 2025 
Preliminary Minutes           
   
 

 

22. Jason Rasmussen said maybe we should not make any changes there 
23. Ryan Silvestri said he thinks the map is set where it is.  He said there may be errant parcels in 

the Town Zoning. 
24. Jason Rasmussen said we can change the Town Zoning. If we apply and we missed some 

parcels, we can add them at a later date. 
25. Terry Carter asked about Dorsey Park area 
26. Jean Strong said Parker Avenue has the river there 
27. Ryan Silvestri said he thinks all of the banks were armored when the mills were there.  Would 

that be an exception to the River Corridor rules. 
28. Jason Rasmussen said he will look it over again 
29. Jean Strong said one brook does come down there 
30. Ryan Silvestri said that at this point, time is more important than fine tuning 
31. Jason Rasmussen said we need to work on the application and tune the map later 
32. Terry Carter said she would meet with Jason Rasmussen before the April meeting. 
33. Eric Alden said there is a parcel on Gill that is excluded and asked why? 
34. Rose Goings said that is part of the Gill homes parcel and there was a recent subdivision. 
35. Jason Rasmussen said he will look into it 
 

BYLAWS - Terry Carter said we need to make the same changes as we made to the Village Zoning 
 

1. Section 221.5 – Limitations and Exceptions  -  
 Section 221.5 (A) and  Addition of 221.5 (A)(7) 
 

Section 221.5 - Current First sentence - Town Zoning 
In accordance with §4413(a) of the Act, the following uses may be regulated only with 
respect to location, size, height, building bulk, yards, courts, setbacks, density of 
buildings, off-street parking, loading facilities, traffic, noise, lighting, landscaping, and 
screening requirements, and only to the extent that regulations do not have the effect of 
interfering with the intended functional use:  
 
Current First sentence - Village Zoning 
In accordance with §4413(a) of the Act, the following uses shall be subject to Site Plan 
Review, and the additional standards specified in Section 510.3, by the Development 
Review Board, but only with respect to location, size, height, building bulk, yards, 
courts, setbacks, density of buildings, off-street parking, loading facilities, traffic, noise, 
lighting, landscaping, and screening requirements, and only to the extent that 
regulations do not have the effect of interfering with the intended functional use:  

 
Addition of 221.5 (A)(7) – This section was not in the Town Regulations 

 
     7. Emergency shelters. Regulating the daily or seasonal hours of operation of an  

emergency shelter shall constitute interfering with the intended use 
.  
Except for State-owned and -operated institutions and facilities, a municipality may regulate 
each of the land uses listed in (A) above for compliance with the National Flood Insurance 
Program and Ludlow's Flood 
 



 PLANNING COMMISSION               March 18, 2025 
Preliminary Minutes           
   
 

 

Hazard Area Bylaws, consistent with the requirements of 24 V.S.A. § 2291 (25) and § 
4424, provided that these regulations shall not have the effect of interfering with the 
intended functional use. 

  
MOTION by Judy Pullinen and seconded by Terry Carter to approve the changes in the Town 
Zoning to make them the same as the Village Regulations for Sections 221.5(A)  and 221.5 (A)(7)  
Motion passed unanimously. 

Section 255:  Administrative Review 
1. Section 255 – Administrative Review - Terry Carter noted that Section 255 does not exist in 

the current  Town regulations. 
2. Judy Pullinen noted the reference to Village RC 
3. Rose Goings said they should be Town RC District and suggested adding Mountain 

Recreation District, Lakes District and Industrial District 
4. Jackson Gore district was suggested 
5. Rose Goings said that they were very specific as to what they wanted in the Jackson Gore 

District.  What is currently in the Town Zoning Regulations is exactly what they petitioned 
for. 

(In accordance with Sec. §4464(c) of the Act.)  

Applicability: The Zoning Administrator is authorized to review and approve a change from 
an existing retail use to a different retail use within the Town RC District, Mountain 
Recreation District, Lakes District and Industrial District..  

Application Requirements: An applicant shall submit a complete application, site plan, 
associated fees, and information about how the project meets the review criteria.  

Review Criteria: All changes in use which the Zoning Administrator is authorized to review 
under this Section must meet the Site Plan Review standards in Section 260.2. In addition, 
the proposed retail use must be located in the same unit and have the same square footage as 
the retail use it is replacing.  

Decisions: No change in use shall be approved that results in an undue adverse impact under 
any applicable standards set forth in these regulations. All decisions, whether to approve, 
approve with conditions, or disapprove an application under Administrative Review shall be 
based upon the review criteria in these regulations. Furthermore, the conditions set forth in 
the conditional use permit for the pre-existing retail use shall remain in full force and effect 
and the applicant shall agree in writing to be bound by those conditions.  

Appeal: Decisions rendered under Administrative Review are subject to appeal under 
Section 223(1).  

Referral to DRB: The authority to render an administrative decision does not mean that the 
Zoning Administrator is required to do so. The Zoning Administrator may refer any 
application to the Development Review Board where board review or interpretation is 
appropriate or necessary. In such cases, the applicant shall be responsible for any additional 
fees or submittals needed for board review. 

MOTION by Judy Pullinen and seconded by Terry Carter to add Section 255 as amended for the 
Town to the Town Zoning Regulations.  Motion passed unanimously. 



 PLANNING COMMISSION               March 18, 2025 
Preliminary Minutes           
   
 

 

 
CURRENT SECTION 260 Town - CONDITIONAL USES (Referred to on Agenda as 
General Conditions) 
(In accordance with sec. §4414 (3) (2))  
  
In any zoning district the conditional uses specified in these Regulations as "Conditional Uses" 
are permitted only by approval of the Development Review Board, if, after public notice and 
public hearing, the Development Review Board grants site plan approval and determines that the 
proposed use shall conform to the general and specific standards prescribed in this Section. In 
granting such conditional use, the Development Review Board may attach such additional 
reasonable conditions and safeguards, as it may deem necessary to implement the purposes of the 
municipal plan and these Regulations. The Zoning Administrator, subject to the time limitations of 
224 of the Regulations, may approve an application for a change in use from one approved 
conditional use to another conditional use, listed in subparagraph C below, provided that:  

1. The Zoning Administrator finds that the proposed conditional use complies with the 
conditional use standards listed in 260 and 260.2; and  
2. The Zoning Administrator MUST notify the owner or owners of all abutting 
properties of the proposed changed in use at least 15 days prior granting a permit for the 
change in use  
3. The proposed conditional use is no more objectionable in character; and  
4. The proposed conditional use is one of the following: home occupation, retail store, 
personal service, professional service or business office and is listed as a conditional use 
in the zoning district; and  
5. The proposed conditional use is in the same unit and has the same square footage as the 
conditional use it is replacing; and  
6. The conditions set forth in the Conditional Use Permit for the pre-existing use shall 
remain in full force and effect and the applicant agrees in writing to be bound by those 
conditions.  

SECTION 260 VILLAGE CONDITIONAL USES  

(In accordance with sec. §4414 (3) (2) of the Act.)  

In all zoning districts, the uses specified in these Regulations as "Conditional Uses" are permitted only 
by approval of the Development Review Board, if, after public notice and public hearing, the 
Development Review Board grants site plan approval and determines that the proposed use shall 
conform to the general and specific standards prescribed in this Section. In granting conditional use 
approval, the Development Review Board may attach such additional reasonable conditions and 
safeguards, as it may deem necessary to implement the purposes of the municipal plan and these 
Regulations..  

MOTION by Terry Carter and seconded by Jean Strong to remove current Town Section 260 
and replace it with the Village Language (indicated above.)  Motion passed unanimously 

 
  

SECTION 290 VILLAGE- AFFORDABILITY REQUIREMENT  - Terry Carter said 
that they had to make a lot of changes in the Village regulations for this Section because the State 
made a lot of changes 



 PLANNING COMMISSION               March 18, 2025 
Preliminary Minutes           
   
 

 

 

     All housing projects comprising 10 or more units are required to provide some affordable 
housing units. Affordable housing must meet the requirements in the definition section of 
these regulations.  

Under this provision affordable units MUST be made available for occupancy (rental or 
purchase) and will be administered by a local/regional housing trust. These units MUST remain 
perpetually affordable and available to person(s) who meet the affordability requirements.  

1. A minimum of 15% of all units developed (rounded) as part of a housing project MUST be 
affordable.  

2. If there are additional affordable units above the required 15% minimum, the 
developer may add one additional full market rate unit for every one of these additional 
affordable units added to the project.  

This provision will come into effect on the date these regulations are approved.  

Any housing project that has been permitted but not yet developed when these regulations are 
approved, will be subject to this provision if an amendment is requested. At the time of the 
amendment, assuming the project was for 10 or more units, or the new unit total is 10 or more 
units, this provision will be applied to the units added as part of the amendment process.  

    In addition, in all areas served by both municipal sewer and water infrastructure,, affordable 
housing development, including mixed-use development, may exceed density limitations for 
residential developments by an additional 40 percent, and may exceed height limitations by one 
floor, provided that the structure complies with the Vermont Fire and Building Safety Code.  

-  
 

CURRENT SECTION 290 TOWN AFFORDABILITY REQUIREMENT: All housing 
projects comprising 10 or more units are required to provide some affordable housing units. 
Affordable housing must meet the requirements in the definition section of these regulations.  

ZONING AND FLOOD HAZARD REGULATIONS AMENDMENT  
Under this provision affordable units MUST be made available for occupancy (rental or 
purchase) and will be administered by a local/regional housing trust. These units MUST remain 
perpetually affordable and are available to person(s) that meet the affordability requirements.  
 
1. 15% of all units developed (rounded) as part of a housing project MUST be affordable.  

2. A developer may choose to provide up to 35% (total) of the original unit count as affordable. If 
there are additional (above the 15% required) affordable units added under this provision, the 
developer may add one additional full market rate unit for every one affordable unit added to the 
project.  

This provision will come into effect on the date these regulations are approved. Any housing 
project that has been permitted but not yet developed when these regulations are approved, will 



 PLANNING COMMISSION               March 18, 2025 
Preliminary Minutes           
   
 

 

be subject to this provision if an amendment is requested. At the time of the amendment, 
assuming the project was for 10 or more units or the new unit total is 10 or more units, this 
provision will be applied to the units added as part of the amendment process.  

MOTION by Ryan Silvestri and seconded by Terry Carter to replace the current Section 290 of 
the Town regulations with the Village Section 290 as written.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
 

X.   OTHER BUSINESS 
 

1. Board member comments  (5 minutes) 
a. Jean Strong asked if we can put up new maps in the conference room. 
b. Rose Goings said the Select Board would have to do that 
c. Ryan Silvestri said that street maps are available. 
d. Noah Schmidt said that the Planning Commission has the opportunity to drive Ludlow in 

a direction with actions, not reactions.  He said that he has read Vision and Goals from the 
Town Plan from 2018 and it should be a driving factor for the town for the next 15 to 20 
years. He said we have buildings (Pot Belly and hotel on Andover) that have been vacant 
for years and we could have done something with them.  This board needs to promote 
opportunities. 

e. Jean Strong said that the Planning does a great job, but without a facilitator or town 
planner to take the lead, it is difficult.  Someone needs to help with new projects. 

f. Ryan Silvestri said there is a clear cut need to get rid of the red tape for builders who want 
to do the projects that the town wants.  Incentivize developers, fast track projects.  He said 
that any change to the current way will be scrutinized and reactions to new changes are 
very negative. 

g. Rose Goings said that so much of available land is in the floodway or river corridor and 
the State Flood people and FEMA have threatened to remove Ludlow’s NFIP.  The Pot 
Belly has flood problems and needs to be torn down and has available parking in the back 
of the building.  The Flood Regulations scare people who want to build or buy. 

h. Judy Pullinen said many other boards take time for retreats to discuss what they want to 
focus on, goals.  We could pick a few after the board reorganization. 

i. Terry Carter said we have to finish the Town zoning regulations and the Town Plan - both 
due in 2027. 

j. Judy Pullinen said we have to decide our priorities. 
k. Terry Carter said the new person at Regional suggested inviting the town for discussions 

about housing and having food.  That person would be a facilitator. 
l. Ryan Silvestri said we need to hire an engineer to address the floodplain issues and spec 

out construction and if hundreds of affordable housing units are feasible in Ludlow or if 
not, where.  He said Chester may be feasible.  We need to think outside of the box.  What 
kind of building can be built in the floodway or flood hazard areas? 

m. Rose Goings said the Flood Hazard area and the Floodway are 2 different things.  Nothing 
may be built in the Floodway.  You can build in the Flood hazard areas as long as the 
building is 2 feet above base flood elevation. 

n. Jean Strong said we need to find places to create parking.  We need directions and support 
from the Select Board.  In the past, this board has spent hours working on a project only to 
have it turned down by the Select Board. 

o. Terry Carter said we can add an agenda item each month for items that we want to look at. 
p. Jean Strong said we need to come up with some constructive things. 



 PLANNING COMMISSION               March 18, 2025 
Preliminary Minutes           
   
 

 

q. Terry Carter said that Justin Hyjek has some ideas to make the Village more pedestrian 
friendly.  We can put this on our April agenda and suggest ordinances to the Trustees. 

r. Ryan Silvestri said the biggest issue is that Route 103, bridge to bridge, is a state road. 
s. Terry Carter said the Trustees can control the speed limit by passing an ordinance. 
t. Ryan Silvestri said we should look into traffic. 
u. Noah Schmidt said we should have a Village Revitalization Master Plan to look into 

empty buildings and find funding sources. 
v. Ryan Silvestri said not everything has to be funded by grants. 
w. Noah Schmidt said we should have a committee to come up with ideas to present to the 

Select Board. 
x. We need to tell the Select Board what we need. 
y. Ryan Silvestri said that as an appointed commissioner, he serves at the pleasure of the 

Select Board.  He wants directives from the Select Board and it would be beneficial to 
have their support. 

z. Terry Carter said the mill at the end of Mill Street is applying for a FEMA buyout.  There 
is hazardous waste there.  We could possibly get money from the Federal government and 
turn it into a green space.  Cherry Nicoll is the grant person for the town and is doing a 
great job. 

aa. Ryan Silvestri said he would love to hear from the Select Board.  We need to change the 
traffic on Main Street and the parking. 

bb. Jean Strong said we have to have more parking. 
cc. Noah Schmidt said he parks in the Municipal lot. 
dd. Terry Carter said there is no handicapped parking on Main Street 
ee. Noah Schmidt suggested diagonal parking. 
ff. Jean Strong said someone suggested that years ago. 
gg. Terry Carter said Aaron Galley did measurements and plans and it got shot down. 
hh. Judy Pullinen said we should get together as a group to discuss our priorities for the next 

year. 
ii. Jean Strong said the Select Board needs to give us some direction. 
jj. Judy Pullinen suggested a joint meeting with the Select Board just to discuss this. 
kk. Noah Schmidt suggested meeting earlier - maybe at 5:00.  It’s hard to get things done.  He 

will bring this up at the next Select Board meeting. 
ll. Jean Strong said the Trustees also need to be on board 
mm. Terry Carter said the boards have had changes in their members. She said there will be 

meetings on April 7th.  Short Term Rentals is also on the Select Board agenda.  She said 
that Martha from Regional sent ordinance from Windsor and West Windsor. 

nn. Eric Alden said that he has also read the 2018 Town Plan and none of the goals were met 
and no action was taken.  We need to create a welcoming feeling for new people or 
businesses coming into town.  Ludlow and Vermont have an aging population.  The 
Planning Office does try to help people through the process. 

oo. Terry Carter said she wants to keep the Downtown vibrant. 
pp. Ryan Silvestri said we need to relay this to the Select Board.  He said that fiscal 

conservatism is the tradition and this tax environment forces towns to be conservative and 
not want to raise the budget.  We can’t raise the municipal rate because the education rate 
is so high. A 5% to 9% increase is not bad.  Our budgets have been bare bones and create 
stagnancy.  The local options tax is a good thing.  Many towns in the state have economic 
development coordinators.  Some have town managers who buy and sell real estate.  We 
should not have the notion that we can’t increase the budgets 



 PLANNING COMMISSION               March 18, 2025 
Preliminary Minutes           
   
 

 

 
2. Citizen Comments – (5 minutes) 

a. Eric Alden said that he has also read the 2018 Town Plan and none of the goals 
were met and no action was taken.  We need to create a welcoming feeling for new 
people or businesses coming into town.  Ludlow and Vermont have an aging 
population.  The Planning Office does try to help people through the process. 

b. Terry Carter said she wants to keep the Downtown vibrant. 
c. Ryan Silvestri said we need to relay this to the Select Board.  He said that fiscal 

conservatism is the tradition and this tax environment forces towns to be 
conservative and not want to raise the budget.  We can’t raise the municipal rate 
because the education rate is so high. A 5% to 9% increase is not bad.  Our 
budgets have been bare bones and create stagnancy.  The local options tax is a 
good thing.  Many towns in the state have economic development coordinators.  
Some have town managers who buy and sell real estate.  We should not have the 
notion that we can’t increase the budgets 

 
 

XI.  ADJOURN 
 

1. MOTION by Judy Pullinen and seconded by Ryan Silvestri to adjourn this meeting.  
Motion passed unanimously. 

2. Meeting adjourned at 7:36 p.m. 
  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Lisha Klaiber 
 
 
 
 
Terry Carter, Chairman  

  
Jean Strong 

 
 
 
Judy Pullinen 

  
 
 
 Ted Stryhas   

 
 
   
 Ryan Silvestri 
 

  

 


